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DESCRIBETHE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Georgia Savings Bank Building is an eleven-story, narrow 
triangular steel-framed building which conforms to its lot 
between Peachtree, Broad and Poplar Streets in the center of Atlanta's 
downtown business district. The steel frame is enclosed at the 
base in heavy limestone piers, while a heavy, plastically handled 
stone facing in upper stories provides a vigorously sculptural 
form for the entire buildins^rxThe street facades contain the 
now familiar base, shaft capti^). components. The base is equiva­ 
lent to two stories in height with large glass areas separated by 
stone piers. The two upper floors above a heavy cornice and a 
parapet are the cap of the structure. Vertical tiers of bay 
windows protrude from the major Peachtree and Broad Street facades 
between the base and the heavy overhanging cornice section. The 
monumental base is achieved by half-columns and piers extending 
through two stories and supporting a substantial classical 
entablature. Original plans specified twelve-story building with 
full columns in front of the facade over the basement area which 
extends underneath the sidewalk.

The date, 1897, the year of construction, is carved over the main 
Peachtree Street entrance. At the junction of Peachtree and 
Poplar Streets the transition between street facades is achieved 
by curving the walls around the corner between the base and capital 
components. Large horizontal windows with curved glass in the 
offices which face this corner create unusual irregular spaces 
within.

The building which originally contained 33,185 square feet of 
rentable area in office floors above the banking floors is now 
being renovated by its new owner, the Hamilton Bank and Trust 
Company. While the bank is making an effort to respect the 
historic fabric of the structure, some interior changes, in part 
to satisfy code requirements for such equipment as sprinkler 
systems, have been considered necessary. The ceilings of the 
main banking floor, for example, have been lowered to provide 
space for such equipment. Fortunately, the iron and marble 
staircase between upper floors, a vanishing type in Atlanta, will 
be preserved. The unusual and interesting office spaces created 
by the narrow triangular shape of the building, including the apex 
locations with their light-filled spaces and spectacular views, 
remain.

While the exterior of the building remains intact, some altera­ 
tions to the original fabric have occurred. The original brick 
and limestone wall surfaces had been subsequently painted and have 
been repainted during the present renovation. Originally a 
corridor passed through the center of the building with elevators 
adjacent to this passageway. The original walls of this area had 
been remodeled with smooth marble and the iron grillwork of the
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elevator cages enclosed before the present owner began renovations 
which have now changed the access pattern. The Peachtree entrance 
has been filled in to adapt to new banking needs and a new more 
direct access in this facade opened up.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Georgia Savings Bank Building is Atlanta's oldest standing 
skyscraper. Its designer, Bradford Gilbert of New York City, 
a well-known architect of the late 19th century, has here produced 
a structure of considerable architectural merit. The sharply 
defined vertical tiers of bay windows in its street facades 
and the narrow triangular form of the building provide a 
visually important component in the present changing environment 
as well as a visible reflection of the City's early commercial 
activity.

In 1897 when this building, then known as the English-American 
Building, was under construction, only one other skyscraper office 
building, The Equitable (Trust Company of Georgia) Building, stood 
in Atlanta. The earlier building has recently been demolished, 
leaving the Georgia Savings Bank Building as the earliest 
example of a type of structure which has been of great importance 
to the commercial growth and urban form of the City.

Little is known of the initial impetus for the building. The 
structure was built by and named for the English-American Loan 
and Trust Company, which listed among its officers in the City 
Directory of the period Rufus B. Bullock, President, Augustus H. 
Benning, Vice President, and Roby Robinson, Cashier. Rufus 
Bullock, the infamous reconstruction Governor of Georgia, had 
been forced out of office in 18?6, but later became a respected 
Atlanta businessman. Augustus H. Benning, who managed the 
building and later became President of the English American 
Company, had moved from New York City about 1881 to establish 
a coal business in Atlanta. Roby Robinson became an important 
figure in Atlanta financial circles.

The building was known until 1910 as The English-American Loan 
and Trust Company Building. It then became the Empire Life 
Building until 1916 when it was called the Flatiron Building. 
In 1920, The Georgia Savings Bank and Trust Company, founded in 
1899 by George M. Brown, who was a son of former Governor and 
Senator Joseph E. Brown, purchased the structure. For more than 
fifty years, until it was purchased in 19?^ by The Hamilton Bank 
and Trust Company, the building was known as the Georgia Savings 
Bank Building.
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While no written record of the planning stages of the building 
has been found, some speculation on its motivation is possible. 
A. H. Benning's son, on the basis of later family discussions, 
reports that the company wanted no adjacent buildings because of 
the danger of fire. Photographs of the construction phases of the 
structure are suggestive. The site was on the northern edge of 
the central business districts; low two- and three-story build­ 
ings bordered the site and residential sections spread out to 
the north. One photo of the apex at Broad and Peachtree Streets 
emphasizes both the tall, narrow form and the key location at the 
intersection of two streets that lead into the central district. 
Clearly, the site and the resulting form provided dramatic 
visual advantages for the English-American Loan and Trust Company.

Bradford Gilbert, who had designed New York City's first steel 
frame building, the Tower Building of 1889, maintained an office 
in Atlanta in 1895 and 1896 while he was the supervising archi­ 
tect of the Cotton States and International Exposition. Plans 
were filed with the City's building inspection office on 
August 5» 1896. One of the most interesting features of the 
building's history is the fact that it pre-dates New York City's 
larger and more famous, but similar, Flatiron Building of 1901 
by D. H. Burnham and Company. Both buildings were built on 
narrow triangular lots, both have monumental classically de­ 
tailed bases and narrow shafts with protruding bay windows and 
heavy, overhanging cornices. The rusticated facade of the New 
York building makes a somewhat more ornate design than Atlanta's 
strongly modeled composition. In 1916, when someone apparently 
noticed the similarity, the Atlanta building was renamed the 
Flatiron Building.

The role which this building has played in structuring the urban 
environment of downtown Atlanta can be documented in many photo­ 
graphs at various intervals since its completion. Both the 
vigorously modeled exterior surfaces and the narrow triangular form 
have continually provided a strong anchor to the central 
business district. This is especially impressive in views 
looking south down Peachtree Street, and equally evident to any­ 
one moving through the district today. The new Central City 
Park has opened up the space to the east of the structure, while 
a small plaza in front of Skidmore, Owings and Merrill's 
Equitable Building of 1968, is north and west on Peachtree 
Street. The result is a visually exciting sequence of architectural 
forms and spaces in which the late nineteenth century form of 
the Georgia Savings Bank Building is an irreplacable component.
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